ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 28, 2017
5:35 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss-Tonki ns, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Chris Tuck

Representati ve Adam Wol

Representative Chris Birch

Representative Gary Knopp

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson (alternate)

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve DeLena Johnson
Representati ve Chuck Kopp (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 13
"An Act prohibiting the expenditure of state or municipal assets
to create a registry based on race or religion.™

- MOVED CSHB 13(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 163

"An Act authorizing the Departnment of Public Safety to enter
into agreenments wth nonprofit regi onal corporations and
federal, tribal, and |ocal governnment agencies to provide |aw
enforcement services; authorizing the Departnment of Public
Safety to collect fees for certain |aw enforcenent services; and
providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 190
“"An Act relating to the presentation of oral coments on the
proposed adopti on, anendnment, or repeal of regulations.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 181

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2017



"An Act relating to per diem for legislators; relating to a
travel allowance for legislators and |egislative enployees; and
relating to the State Oficers Conpensation Conmm ssion."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 13

SHORT TITLE: NO ST. FUNDS FOR FEDERAL REG STRY
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) JOSEPHSON

01/ 18/ 17 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 17

01/ 18/ 17 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H) STA, JUD

02/ 18/ 17 (H STA AT 11: 00 AM GRUENBERG 120
02/ 18/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 23/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 23/ 17 (H) Schedul ed but Not Heard

03/ 28/ 17 (H) STA AT 5: 30 PM GRUENBERG 120
BILL: HB 163

SHORT TITLE: DPS LAW ENFORCE. SVCS: AGREEMENTS/ FEES
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

03/ 08/ 17 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 08/ 17 (H STA, FIN

03/ 16/ 17 (H) STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 16/ 17 (H <Bi || Hearing Cancel ed>

03/ 21/ 17 (H STA AT 3: 00 PM GRUENBERG 120
03/ 21/ 17 (H) Heard & Held

03/ 21/ 17 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 28/ 17 (H STA AT 5:30 PM GRUENBERG 120

BILL: HB 190
SHORT TI TLE. REGULATI ON ADOPTI OV ORAL COMVENT
SPONSOR(s): TALERI CO

03/ 22/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 22/ 17 (H) STA
03/ 28/ 17 (H) STA AT 5:30 PM GRUENBERG 120

BILL: HB 181
SHORT TI TLE: LEGQ SLATURE PER DI EM AND TRAVEL ALLOWANCE
SPONSOR(s) : KREI SS- TOWKI NS

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 28, 2017



03/ 16/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 16/ 17 (H) STA, FIN
03/ 28/ 17 (H) STA AT 5:30 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

WALT MONEGAN, Commi ssi oner Designee

Departnment of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
163 on behalf of the House Rules Standing Comm ttee, sponsor, by
request of the governor.

W LL MAYO

Al aska Regi onal Coalition and Tanana Chi efs Conference
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 163.

REPRESENTATI VE DAVE TALLERI CO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 190, as prinme sponsor.

BERETT W LBER, Staff

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 181 on behal f of
Representative Kreiss-Tonkins, prine sponsor, with the use of a
Power Poi nt presentation.

KATE SHEEHAN, Director

Di vi sion of Personnel and Labor Relations (DPLR)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
181.

PAM VARNI , Executive Director

Legislative Affairs Agency (LAA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
181.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

5:35:11 PM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2017



CHAIR JONATHAN KREI SS-TOWKINS called the House State Affairs
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 5:35 p. m
Representatives Tuck, Wol, Birch, Knopp, and Kreiss-Tonkins
were present at the call to order. Representati ves LeDoux and
Josephson (alternate) arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 13-NO ST. FUNDS FOR FEDERAL REGQ STRY

5:35: 33 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 13, "An Act prohibiting the expenditure
of state or nunicipal assets to create a registry based on race
or religion." [Before the conmttee, adopted as a work draft on
2/ 18/ 17, was the proposed committee substitute (CS) for HB 13,
Version 30-LS0147\J, Martin, 1/26/17, hereafter referred to as
Version J.]

5:35:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON, testifying on HB 13 as prinme sponsor,
referred to AS 44.99.040, entitled "Limtation on use of
assets”, which lists efforts for which Al aska does not wish to
contribute assets, including the REAL ID Act of 2005 and ot her
efforts that might infringe on Al aska's due process rights. He
mai ntai ned that the proposed l|egislation would add a provision
declaring that Alaska wll not have a registry based on race,
religion, national origin, or ethnicity. He opined that Version
J is a tenpered and nodest bill; it does not reference
"sanctuary city" or enforcenent of federal inmgration orders;
and it is consistent with statenents made by the |egislature
after [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001]. He
expl ai ned that Representative David Guttenberg introduced House
Joint Resolution 22 during the Twenty-Third Alaska State
Legi sl ature, 2003-2004, declaring that the state would not
participate in efforts by the federal governnent to collect and
mai ntain information about political, religious, social views,
and associ ati ons. He asserted that Version J supports these
st at enent s.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that during the House State
Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting of 2/18/ 17, Representative
Birch asked about "benign" registries that Al aska currently
mai ntai ns, such as those relating to health or social services,
whi ch contain information on race. He asserted that "race" is
not the sole reason for any of those registries. He nmaintained

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2017



that under Version J, a registry may not be based on race,
religion, or national origin.

5:39:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK stated that he appreciates the proposed
| egi sl ation; so much of an individual's information is
nationalized and privatized; and registries should not be
created to "single out" people based on religion and race. He
mentioned that the M nnesota Senate voted down its REAL |ID Act
because of a concern for Mislinms being identified and tracked.
He suggested that the proposed |egislation addresses this sane
concern by attenpting to prevent a registry based on religion.

5:41:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL noved to report the proposed CS for HB 13,
Version 30-LS0147\J, Martin, 1/26/17, out of <conmittee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
note. There being no objection, CSHB 13(STA) was reported from
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

HB 163- DPS LAW ENFORCE. SVCS: ACREEMENTS/ FEES

5:41:55 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS announced that the next order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 163, "An Act authorizing the Departnent
of Public Safety to enter into agreenments wth nonprofit
regi onal corporations and federal, tribal, and |ocal governnent
agencies to provide |law enforcenent services; authorizing the
Department of Public Safety to collect fees for certain |aw
enf orcenment services; and providing for an effective date.”

5:42: 23 PM

VWALT MONEGAN, Comm ssioner Designee, Departnent of Public Safety
(DPS), relayed that there will be changes to HB 163 to clarify
the intent of the proposed |egislation. He stated that the
intent of HB 163 is not to charge villages for DPS services for
which they are entitled, but to facilitate the contracting for
DPS services by communities seeking extra protection.

5:43:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL noted that there is a shortage of troopers
and DPS has w thdrawn trooper coverage from areas due to |ack of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2017



f undi ng. He suggested that when an entity such as a
muni ci pality, r egi onal cor porati on, or tribal gover nment
contracts for a trooper, that creates a shortage of troopers in
the area from which that trooper cane. He explained that unless
there is a surplus of troopers and the noney saved is used to
hire and train another trooper, "we're playing a bit of whack-a-
nol e. ™

COW SSI ONER MONEGAN responded that is not the intent of the
proposed | egi sl ation. He suggested that the "cleanest” way to
provide a contract trooper is to hire one into a |long-term non-
permanent ("non-pernf) position, so as not to detract from
trooper coverage el sewhere. He stated that DPS is not "chasing
the noney"; it is trying to provide a service; and if the
contract ends, so does the long-term non-perm position.

5:45: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH rel ayed that he is continually contacted by
constituents in South Anchorage about the lack of trooper
enforcenment on the Seward H ghway. He offered that having |ived
in Fairbanks for 25 years, he is aware that troopers provide |aw
enforcenent outside the corporate city limts of Fairbanks and
North Pole but still wthin the Fairbanks North Star Borough
( FNSB) . He asked how DPS, with limted resources, chooses the
areas of trooper coverage.

COM SSI ONER MONEGAN answered that at one point there were 19
troopers assigned to the Al aska Bureau of Hi ghway Patrol (ABHP),
but now there are 3. He stated that Colonel [Janes] Cockrell,
Director, Alaska State Troopers (AST), has indicated that AST

will service the Seward H ghway Safety Corridor wuntil the
Muni cipality of Anchorage (MDA) can "gear up" and take it over.
He added that AST would still patrol that highway for limted

hours during tinmes of high traffic, since it is a state hi ghway.
He maintained that ultimately DPS needs to consider the areas
with no other |aw enforcenent avail able. He expressed his hope
that MOA will arrange for all the communities along Turnagain
Armto "ante up" and work towards having that highway patrolled.
He added that there is an ongoing discussion between the state
and MOA regarding this matter.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked about |aw enforcenent coverage on
Farmer's Loop Road, Steese H ghway, Richardson Hi ghway, and all
the roads outside of the city limts of Fairbanks and North
Pol e, where residents have an expectation of public safety and
public safety response.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2017



COWMWM SSI ONER  MONEGAN responded that the AST detachnment in
Fai rbanks is nore robust for patrol than that of Anchorage. The
Fai rbanks detachnent handles areas not protected by the North
Pol e, Fairbanks, or University police, and often the police and
troopers wll support each other. He relayed that realistically
the detachnent in Fairbanks has a few nore troopers who can
respond to calls, whereas the Anchorage post has nostly command
staff.

5:49: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK posed the question: |f an agency contracted
with DPS for services, would the authority for enforcenent be
with DPS or with the contracting agency?

COWMM SSI ONER MONEGAN answered that the troopers woul d be working
under the authority of state statutes.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked, "Wo do they answer to?"

COWM SSI ONER MONEGAN responded that the troopers would take
direction from the community to address the issues and concerns
for which they were contracted.

5:52: 00 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS opened public testinony on HB 163.
5.52:22 PM

WLL MAYO Al aska Regional Coalition (ARC) and Tanana Chiefs
Conference (TCC), testified that ARC is a consortium of five
Native non-profit regional corporations representing 65,000
Al askans and 100 tribes from Kotzebue to Ketchikan. He stated
that the nmenbers of the coalition include the Central Council of
Tlingit and Haida Indian Tribes of Alaska (CCTH TA) in Sout heast
Al aska, Kawerak in the None region, Chugachmut in the Prince
WIlliam Sound region, Maniilaqg in Northwest Al aska, and TCC in
the Interior. He relayed that [these corporations] partner with
the State of Alaska through contracts and grants to provide
numerous services to Alaska residents, including public safety
in remote rural communities.

MR. MAYO nmumintained that the Alaska Regional Coalition

appreciates the intent of HB 163, which is to find ways to
i ncrease the nunber of public safety officers in the state. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2017



asserted that public safety is a key priority for the coalition.
He reiterated that the intent of HB 163 is for the departnent to
have the flexibility to contract with conmunities that want to
pay for trooper presence. He stated that this is a |audable
goal ; however, he expressed that the coalition is concerned that
HB 163 may have uni ntended consequences. This concern is that
HB 163 may one day be interpreted such that all 150-plus snal
communities in Alaska that currently do not have any public
safety presence mght be invited, expected, or required to enter
into contracts with DPS to receive public safety services.

MR. MAYO nentioned that the coalition has brought this concern
to the attention of DPS; DPS shares the concern and is drafting
| anguage to address it. He asserted that DPS did go on record
to the House State Affairs Standing Committee [during the
3/21/17 neeting] stating that it does not intend to create a
system in which law enforcenent is available to one community
and not anot her. He conceded that the interpretation he cited
does not represent the intent of HB 163, but the coalition
believes that this concern should be alleviated explicitly
wi thin the proposed | egislation.

5:56:18 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWKI NS cl osed public testinony on HB 163.
[HB 163 was hel d over.]

HB 190- REGULATI ON_ADOPTI OV ORAL COMVENT

5:56: 33 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS announced that the next order of business
would be HOUSE BILL NO 190, "An Act relating to the
presentation of oral cooments on the proposed adoption
anendnent, or repeal of regulations.”

5:56: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DAVE TALLERI CO, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
presented HB 190, as prinme sponsor. He paraphrased from the
sponsor statement, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

This legislation changes the Admnistrative
Procedure Act to allow for oral testinony when
requested by individuals. In a tine of informationa

technol ogy and the vast geography of the state, it is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2017



time to update this public proceeding law. On the date
and at the time and place designated in the notice the
agency shall give each interested persons or person’s
authorized representative, the opportunity to present
orally to that agency about regulation changes. This
includes regulations being adopted, anended, or
repeal ed. This does not include energency regulations
that are adopted for energency purposes.

Currently, state agencies and boards are required to
gi ve notice about regul ation changes, but they are not
required to listen to oral testinony and sonetinmes
only witten testinmony will be accept ed.

This legislation requires the agency or board to
provi de an opportunity to give a verbal testinony when
request ed. This verbal testinmony can be taken
tel ephonically at the tine and place designated by the
agency or board.

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO continued by saying that his staff is
currently working wth the Departnment of Law (DOL), the
Departnment of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent
(DCCE), and the admnistration to draft a commttee substitute
that is acceptable to all three.

5:59: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if there was sone occurrence that
pronpted introduction of the proposed | egislation.

REPRESENTATIVE TALERICO replied that sever al constituents
contacted him regarding a recent neeting of the Al aska State
Medi cal Board at which they had wanted to give oral testinony
but did not have the opportunity to do so. He was asked by the
constituents why they could not give testinony, when the
| egi sl ature and other boards take testinony. He suggested that
with the changes in technol ogy, the Adm nistrative Procedure Act
may be out dat ed.

6:01: 15 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked Representative Talerico to explain

what constitutes testinony. He asked if emamil comunication is
consi dered testinony.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 28, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO responded that an email is an acceptable
form of witten testinony. He noted that enmils addressing
bills and other topics are often sent to legislators and
conmi tt ees.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if emails are part of the official
record; that is, what rmakes an enmil a bonified conponent of the
testimony on proposed |egislation?

REPRESENTATI VE TALERI CO expressed his wunderstanding that al
emai led testinony on any issues that the |egislature addresses
is listed on the Bill Action & Status Inquiry System (BASIS) and
conpiled for the historic record.

[ HB 190 was hel d over.]

HB 181- LEG SLATURE PER DI EM AND TRAVEL ALLOWANCE

6: 04: 30 PM

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS announced that the final order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 181, "An Act relating to per diem for
legislators; relating to a travel allowance for |egislators and
| egislative enployees; and relating to the State Oficers
Conpensati on Comm ssion. "

6: 04: 44 PM
The committee took an at-ease from6:04 p.m to 6:07 p.m
6: 07: 06 PM

BERETT WLBER, Staff, Representative Jonathan Kreiss-Tonkins,
Al aska State Legislature, presented HB 181 on behalf of
Representative Kreiss-Tonkins, prinme sponsor, with the use of a
Power Poi nt presentati on. She began by referring to Slide 2,
entitled "Wiat's the point of HB 181?" She stated that the
intent of HB 181 is to enpower the State Oficers Conpensation
Comm ssion (SOCC) to set |legislative per diem

M5. WLBER referred to Slide 3, entitled "How does per diem
currently work?" She relayed that l|egislative per diemis noney
paid to legislators to cover lodging, neals, and incidental
expenses related to legislators' work during the |egislative
session. It is automatically paid to a |egislator unless he/she
contacts the Legislative Affairs Agency (LAA) and declines
paynent, which nmay be done on a daily basis. She added that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 28, 2017



current per diem policy for Al aska |egislators has been set by
the Legislative Council Joint Committee (Legislative Council)
since 1993. She explained that the current policy is that the
| egislative per diemis equal to the highest rate of federal per
diemfor the |ocation of session.

6: 08: 29 PM

M5. WLBER referred to Slide 4, entitled "Wat does the highest
federal rate nean?" She stated that the U S. Departnent of
Def ense (DoD) sets the federal per diem rate for Al aska, which
is the rate for a non-contiguous state. Al aska's legislative
per diem rate is currently the highest federal short-term per
diem rate. She referred to the information on the chart on
Slide 4, which lists the maxinum |lodging rate, nmeal rate, and
incidental rate for Juneau for two seasons. She indicated that
the rate changes seasonally: the total maxi mum per diem for the
sumer is $295 and for the winter is $275. She pointed out that
the rate may also be adjusted by DoD according to a market
shift; for exanple, it was set at $213 earlier in the current
session and recently was changed to $275.

6: 09: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that her understanding is that the
seasonal change is the beginning of March; however, the chart
shows May as the begi nning of the seasonal change.

M5. WLBUR expl ai ned that the seasonal dates listed on the chart
i ndicate yearly changes for wnter and sumer. She suggested
that there are additional "de facto" adjustnents nade by DoD
based on | ocal rates for |odging, neal, and |iving expenses.

6:11: 09 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 5, entitled "Two Slide Hi story of
SOCC & Leg Per Diem Pt. 1," and asked, "Wy does |egislative
per diem work the way it does?" She nentioned that Slide 5
gives a short history on |legislative per diemand how it relates
to the SOCC. She relayed that in 1986, the SOCC was authorized
and vested with full power to set |egislative conpensation
salaries, including per diem but could only do so after a
constitutional anendnent was approved. Until the constitutiona
amendnent was passed, statutory guidelines were adopted nmaking
| egi sl ative per diemrates the sane as those of [other] State of
Al aska (SOA) enpl oyees. These guidelines were to be repealed
once the constitutional anendnent passed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 28, 2017



M5. WLBUR stated that by 1992, the constitutional anmendnment had
neither been passed nor offered to voters. She said that
applying the SOA per diem rates to legislators was intended to
be a short-term solution. She offered that doing so turned out

to be an accounting "nightmare": at that tine, legislators
could receive per diem during both session and interim there
was a short-term rate for legislators not living in their

per manent residences during session or while traveling to do
| egi sl ative business; there was a long-termrate for legislators
living in their permanent residences while doing legislative
busi ness; and there was a variation on each rate based on where
a legislator lived.

M5. WLBUR related that a floor amendnment [Amendnent 2] to

Senate Bill 99, an omibus licensing bill, was offered by the
chair of Legislative Council in 1993 [the Eighteenth Al aska
State Legislature, (1993-1994)]. The anendnent w thdrew the

authority to set travel reinbursenrent and per diem for
| egislators from the SOCC and gave the authority to Legislative
Counci | .

M5. WLBUR relayed that from 1994 to 2017, Legislative Council
has had the authority to set legislative per diem it has set
the per diem at the highest federal rate of per diem set by DoD
and based on the location at which a person is receiving per
di em

6:14: 28 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 6, entitled "Two Slide Hi story of
SOCC & Leg Per Diem Pt. 2," to discuss the history of the SOCC
She said that Legislative Council withdrew the authority to set
per diem from the SOCC because the SOCC had not yet been
enact ed. She relayed that in 2008, the SOCC was reestablished
as a fully functioning comm ssion. Former Representative M ke
Doogan introduced House Bill [260] to repeal and replace the
defunct SOCC statutes and establish a new system which would
(indisc.) the commssion to set salaries for legislators, the
governor, the |ieutenant governor, and department conmm ssioners.
She stated that the intent of this legislation was to keep
| egislators "at armis length" from the process of having to set
their own conpensation to avoid conflicts of interest, to
decrease inequity in the system of setting rates, and to avoid
having to adjust legislative salaries through |egislation. She
added that it does not |ook good when |egislators adjust their
own salaries by legislation, even when the adjustnent is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 28, 2017



necessary and consistent with narket prices. She rmai ntai ned
that the proposed |egislation would require Legislative Counci
to set per diem in accordance with the recommendation of the
SOCC.

M5. WLBUR relayed that the language in House Bill 260
pertaining to the SOCC was subsequently incorporated into House
Bill 417 by the House Finance Conmittee and passed both bodies
[as SCS CSHB 417(FIN)], establishing the SOCC as it is today.
Consequently, the SOCC sets salaries for legislators, the
governor and |ieutenant governor, and departnent conm SsSioners.
She said that currently the SOCC does not address |egislative
per diem She stated that in 2009, the SOCC recomended that
legislative salaries be increased from $24,000 to $50,400 per
year. It also elimnated interim per diem which had allowed
legislators to claim per diem during interim if they had
performed up to four hours of work on any given day.

6:17: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the SOCC ever recomended a
sal ary increase after 2009.

M5. WLBUR responded that the SOCC made recommendations for
salary increases for the governor and |ieutenant governor in
2011, which the legislature adopted; in 2014, it reconmended
salary increases for conmssioners, which the |legislature
rejected. She stated that in 2015, the SOCC recommended that if
a deputy conmm ssioner was offered the position of comm ssioner
and his/her salary was currently greater than that of the
comm ssioner, he/she would not have to take a pay cut to becone
conm ssi oner .

6: 18: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL referred to the idea of the SOCC setting the
conpensation for legislators with the intent of keeping the
process "at arms length" from | egislators. He suggested that
if the SOCC s recomendation is subject to |legislative approval,
then that brings the decision within arms |ength. He gave an
exanpl e: the SOCC decides to recommend a |egislative salary
i ncrease of 25 percent, because the legislators have not had an
i ncrease since 2009. He asked if it could be perceived that
there is an expectation for the legislature to act depending on
the political whimat the tine.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 28, 2017



M5. WLBUR responded that she will address that in a subsequent
sli de.

6: 20:14 PM

M5. WLBUR said that even though the SOCC had the |ega
authority to set legislative per diem as far back as 2009, it
decided not to do so; it wanted Legislative Council to continue
to set travel allowances and | egislative per diem

6: 20: 40 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 7, entitled "Current |ega
relationship,” and explained that it describes the |ega
rel ati onship between the SOCC and per diem policy. She rel ayed
that AS 24.10.130(c) of Article 03, entitled "Conpensation of
Legislators,” states that the Alaska Legislative Council shall
adopt a policy in accordance with AS 39.23.540(d). She said
that AS 39.23.540(d) states that the SOCC shall set the rate and
form of conpensation benefits and all owances for |egislators.

6:21:21 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 8, entitled "State of the SOCC in
2007. " She stated that the SOCC is a five-person board
appointed by the governor: the speaker of the House puts

forward two nom nees; the president of the Senate puts forward
two nom nees; and the governor chooses one nom nee from each and
appoints three people fromthe public. The conm ssioners on the
board serve "staggered" four-year terns; they neet no nore than
once per year and no less than once every two years. The
conmi ssioners may not serve on any other state boards or
commissions or in any group for which the board nakes
recommendations for at |east four years before becom ng an SOCC
comm ssioner. A legislator would have to wait four years after
hi s/ her term ended before being eligible to serve on the SOCC

M5. WLBUR nentioned that the duties of an SOCC comm ssioner are
to set salaries for the governor, the |I|ieutenant governor,
| egi sl ators, and departnent conm ssioners. She clarified that
the legislature does not have the power to approve SOCC
recommendati ons but does have the power to reject them The
| egislature may refrain from acting, therefore adopting the
recommendations de facto, or it may pass legislation to reject
the recomendati ons. She explained that to reject SOCC
recommendations, legislators nust pass a bill within the first
60 days of the session rejecting the reconmmendati ons. She added

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 28, 2017



that the SOCC puts forward a package of reconmendations so that
to reject the recommendations, the l|egislature nust reject them
"whol esal e. " She gave an exanpl e: the SOCC may not allow an
increase in the |ieutenant governor's salary but reject an
i ncrease in comm ssioners' salaries.

6: 23: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked what determnes SOCC s agenda for
maki ng reconmendati ons.

M5. WLBUR replied that it is witten into statute that SOCC is
to assess if changes need to be made, and that assessnment nust
be perforned at |east once every tw years and no nore than

every year. The assessnent entails a systematic analysis of a
variety of data to decide if conpensation and salary rates are
appropriate and if recommendations are needed. The SOCC
considers rates of other states, past |legislative salaries,
cost-of-living, inflation rates, and an abundance of salary
dat a.

6: 25: 04 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 9, entitled "SOCC Menbership,” to
poi nt out the current and past nenbers of the board.

6:25:32 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL referred to Slide 9 and asked for the
meani ng of "Public/House of Representatives" after the first
name under current menbers.

M5. WLBUR expl ained that each nmenber is a public nenber, whose
nom nation cones from the House of Representatives, the Senate
or the governor. She pointed out the one vacant seat shown in
the chart.

CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS asked if that vacancy has been filled by
t he governor.

M5. WLBUR replied that she believes that Scott Cunni ngham hol ds
t hat seat, although the nane is not yet on the SOCC website.

6: 26: 40 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 10, entitled "Wat would it |ook
like if SOCC set per dienP" She nentioned that she spoke wth

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 28, 2017



Jessi ca Ceary [ Accounti ng Fi nance Manager , Legi sl ative
Adm ni strative Services] of LAA who indicated that she sees no

t echni cal or | ogistic difficulties, under t he current
| egi sl ative accounting system wth the SOCC setting per diem
rat es. She stated that the SOCC already uses data-driven

methods to craft fair and logical proposals for |legislative
sal aries and could do the sanme regarding per diem

M5. WLBUR pointed out that the SOCC is an apolitical and
impartial body specifically designed to renove |egislators from
the awkward position of setting their own conpensations and per
di ens. Tasking the SOCC with that function supports that
i ntent. She said that with authority over both salary and per
diem the SOCC can maintain a balance between cost-of-Iiving,
which per diemis intended to cover, and salary, to nake sure

that legislators' living expenses are covered and a diverse
range of good candidates are attracted to public office. She
added that since the SOCC nmeets a mninmum of every other year
and a meximum of once per year, it can mneke necessary
adj ustnments or address unexpected changes w thout the need for
| egi sl ation. She suggested that consequently, legislative per

diem would cease to consune legislative tinme, noney, and
resour ces.

6: 28: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if her wunderstanding is correct:
the SOCC has the authority to perform the tasks nmentioned but
has not perforned them

M5. WLBUR replied that in statute, in the records of the
commttee neetings to establish the SOCC, and in SOCC neeting
records, there is evidence to suggest that the SOCC has the
| egal power to set per diem however, Legislative Council has
been performng this task for the past nine years and the SOCC
has declined to contest that.

M5. WLBUR, in response to Representative LeDoux, said that HB
181 would require the SOCC to set per diemrates. She confirned
that currently the SOCC has authority under statute to set per
diem rates; it is not using this authority; and HB 181 would
require themto use that authority to set per diemrates.

6: 30: 29 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 11 and stated that on the right of
the slide is a list of the reports that the SOCC consulted to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 28, 2017



make 2015 salary reconmendations - evidence of its data-driven
approach to setting salaries. She pointed out the statement on
the left of the slide indicating that the SOCC will neet to make
recommendations later this year; t her ef ore, the proposed
legislation is tinely.

6:31: 05 PM

M5. WLBUR referred to Slide 12 to give thanks to those who
assi sted her with her research.

6:31:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK referred to Slide 6, which cites the
| egi sl ati on proposed by M ke Doogan. He pointed out that the
slide indicates that the SOCC was to adjust |egislative salaries
every five years. He asked if that was correct or if that was
elimnated fromthe bill

M5. WLBUR expl ained that she inserted the |anguage about having
to adjust salaries every five years to illustrate how difficult
it would be for the legislators to set their own salaries. She
added that to keep up with inflation and cost-of-living, they
woul d have to adjust the salaries often. She said that she
regrets using such specific information, since it was neant to
be representational and not factual.

6: 33: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the SOCC has given any reason why
it has not considered either a legislative salary increase, or a
| egislative salary decrease within the last 13 years. She
suggested that it hasn't considered the legislature at all and
asked if there is an explanation for that.

M5. WLBUR answered that the SOCC considers the |egislature, but
maki ng reconmendations is a different matter.

6: 34: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked how many state |egislatures determ ne
their own salary, and he offered his belief that the U S
Congress does vote on its own salary. He stated that he grew up
in a state in which |awrakers voted on their own salary and
still do.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 28, 2017



M5. WLBUR referred to a list, entitled "2017 Legislative
Conpensations By State,” in the conmttee packet. She said that
she does not know the specific nunber but said she believes that
19 states have independent conpensation comrissions to set
| egi sl ative sal ari es.

6: 35: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH stated that in his experience, per diemis
usually based on reinbursable expenses, and he suggested the

SOCC mi ght consider such a system of paynent. He conceded t hat
paying a flat per diemrate is easier. He pointed out that many
of the legislative staff are from out of Juneau and do not
receive per diem He asked, "How do you reconcile that?" He
mentioned that 12 out of 14 comm ssioners in the governor's
cabinet are domciled outside of Juneau. He stated his
understanding that there are sone housing accommodations for
t hese commi ssioners. He asked for an estinate of how many

| egislative staffers are fromout of town.

M5. WLBUR replied that she does not know and will defer that
guestion to Panela Varni |[Executive Director, LAA], who is
present in the audience.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH responded that he would |ike to better
under st and this i ssue and i f t he responsibility for
accomodating out-of-town staff lies with himor with the SOCC.

M5. WLBUR commented that |egislative staff do not receive per
diem or conpensation and there has been litigation in the past
concerning this. She said that SOA departnental enployees
receive neals and incidentals as well as travel and |odging
rei nbursenents from the state if they are away from hone to
wor k. She added that those rates are set by the conmm ssioner of
the Departnent of Administration (DOA), and for these enpl oyees,
the policy for per diem and reinbursenment is clearly stated in
the Alaska Admnistrative Mnual (AAM. Legislative staff do
not receive per diem Legislators do receive per diem and the
policy for legislative per diem would be addressed in the
proposed | egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked how per diem is calculated for SOA
enpl oyees. He asked if lodging is fully reinbursed and a nea
al l omance is offered. He clarified that he is referring to
enpl oyees of departnents, not |egislative enpl oyees.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 28, 2017



M5. WLBUR answered that per diem for state enpl oyees who trave
for work consists of [|odging expenses, which are paid in
advance, a $60 neal allowance, and reinbursement of incidenta
expenses. She said that the question is, Wy can't |egislators
just junmp on the SOA rate? She explained that SOA enpl oyee
travel consists of a brief trip, and rates are set by the
commi ssi oner of DOA and/or by collective bargaining units. She
added that none of these characteristics apply to |egislators;
the nature of legislator travel - to nove to Juneau for four
months - is very different from SOA enpl oyee travel. Appl yi ng
SOA per diempolicy to legislators - that is, paying for trave
and | odging in advance - would be very difficult.

6:43:11 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL reiterated that when a state enployee
travels for work - such as to visit a facility or check on a
dock - it involves a plane ticket, a few nights |odging, sone
meal s, and possibly a taxi. He said that legislators are in
Juneau for nonths and generally have different housing options
other than a nightly  hotel. These alternative |iving
arrangements are typically less expensive than nightly hotel
expenses. He concluded that this "gray area" of conpensation

woul d be addressed by the SOCC under the proposed | egislation.
6:46: 01 PM

KATE SHEEHAN, Di rector, Division of Personnel and Labor
Rel ations (DPLR), Departnent of Administration (DOA), stated
that under state statute, she serves as secretary to the SOCC
In response to Representative LeDoux's question on salary
i ncrease reconmendations since 2009, she stated that there have

been recomendations, but not for the |egislature. The SOCC
considers each person or group - the governor, the |ieutenant
governor, the legislators, and the departnment conm ssioners -
then has a discussion and determ nes recomrendati ons. It neets
sever al tinmes, votes on the recomrendations, i ssues a

prelimnary report by Novenmber 15, and issues a final report to
the legislature ten days after the begi nning of session.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOQUX comrented that it was curious that the
SOCC, which was authorized to deal wth Ilegislative salary
i ssues, has made no recommendations since it was formed in 2009.

MS. SHEEHAN responded that in the past four years, the SOCC has

only met twice and has determined for various reasons not to
make reconmendati ons for wage increases.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 28, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if those reasons have been nade
public.

M5. SHEEHAN responded yes. She stated that the neetings are
public and neeting mnutes are posted on the SOCC website. She
stated that she has been in her position just under three years
so has been to only one SOCC neeting; the determ nation was nmade
at that neeting that there would be no recomendations for
sal ary increases due to budgetary issues.

6: 48: 56 PM
CHAI R KREI SS- TOWI NS asked how the SOCC agenda is determ ned and
what method it uses to choose the categories of state officers

that it will consider for conpensation.

M5. SHEEHAN answered that the SOCC considers each group - the

governor, the |ieutenant governor, the conm ssioners, and the
| egi sl ators. There is data provided for each group, and there
is discussion on each group. She said that recomendations

m ght be no salary increases or sonme salary increases and not
ot hers. She reiterated that the legislature may either take no
action, in which case the recommendations are adopted, or the
| egislature may reject all the reconmendati ons.

6: 50: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK comented that in 2009, there was a bill to
reject the SOCC recomrendati ons. He asked if legislators paid
taxes on their interimper diem

M5. SHEEHAN responded that she was not sure. She said that
there are not always taxes paid on per diem but there
potentially could be taxes on per diem if it is above the
federal rate.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK expressed his understanding that additiona
conpensati on was awarded when a legislator left his/her normal
wor kpl ace to conduct |egislative activity. He offered that
Juneau legislators get per diem because they also |eave their
wor kpl aces and forego other earnings; they receive 35 percent of
what is received by "traveling" legislators and are taxed. He
suggested that per diemis a part of conpensation; it is part of
|l egislative salaries; and by statute it is determned by
Legi sl ative Council .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 28, 2017



6:52:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL responded that he has heard the explanation
that the per diem paid to Juneau legislators, which is 75

percent of the per diem paid to non-Juneau legislators, 1is
t axed, because they live in their own houses and eat in their
own kitchens. Their per diem is nore |ike income and not
conpensation for travel, |odging, and neals. He asked if the

SOCC considers per diemto be incone, since the |living expenses
for legislators vary greatly. He nmentioned that the SOCC has
not recomended a cost-of-living increase in salary since its
i nception, and he suggested it may consider an increase in per
diemto be a raise. He asked if that has been discussed by the
SCOCC.

M5. SHEEHAN replied that the SOCC has not discussed |egislative
per di em since 2009.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if the SOCC, as a conpensation
conm ssion, considers conpensation in totality and if it
considers other sources of conpensation, such as received by
Juneau | egi sl at ors.

M5. SHEEHAN responded yes. She said that would be presented to
the SOCC for consideration along with office allowances and
travel

6: 54: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if it is fair to say that the SOCC
has not |ooked at anything with respect to the |egislature since
20009.

M5. SHEEHAN replied that the SOCC | ooked at the historical wage
increases for the legislature and what |legislators in other
states earn. She said that her recollection is that it did not
| ook at anything beyond that, but she added that she would have
to refer to the mnutes.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX offered that the SOCC |ooked at the
salaries in other states and decided not to nake any
reconmendat i ons.

M5. SHEEHAN answered that the SOCC considers the current budget
si tuation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 28, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted the difference between a state
enpl oyee and a legislator regarding per diem expenses. She
asked if there was such a thing as long-term per diem for
enpl oyees in the executive branch and, if so, what that is.

M5. SHEEHAN answered that there is long-term per diem and it
depends on the housing arrangenent. She said that the executive
branch may need to send enployees to oversee a project for an
extended tine. In that case, the enployees wll be in an
apartnent-type setting and will provide their own neals; neals,
incidentals, and |odging allowances are reduced. She said she
bel i eved the nmeal and incidental allowance to be $30 per day.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the state arranged the apartnent
or lodging or if the enployee was given an allowance to secure
hi s/ her own | odging. She asked if there was a separate
al l omance for food and incidentals.

M5. SHEEHAN rel ayed that the state does secure the housing and
pays for it. She said there are tines when enployees stay with
famly or friends, in which case they get the very reduced rate
of $30, or they may own a honme in the |ocation. She conceded

that she did not know if, in sone instances, the state paid a
set amount and the enployee secured his/her own |ong-term
housi ng. She said she would provide that information to the
conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX nentioned that |legislators bring their
cars to Juneau for the session and cannot rent a car in Juneau
for the three or four nonths that they are in Juneau. She asked
if the executive branch allows enployees to rent cars for one to
four nonths while working at a different |ocation or if they are
expected to ship their cars to the |ocation.

M5. SHEEHAM responded that she did not know the answer to that
and woul d provide that information to the conmttee.

6: 59: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH stated that there are nmany staff that nopve
to Juneau for the session - they don't live in Juneau but are
there for work. He asked if the long-term per diem rate is

avai l able or offered to them He asked Ms. Sheehan if she had a
sense of how many staff were in that category and if there is
opportunity for themto mtigate sone of the relocation costs.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 28, 2017



M5. SHEEHAN stated that she does not work with |egislative per
diens and sal aries, and she deferred to Ms. Varni.

7:00:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK referred to Slide 7. He relayed that AS
24.10.130(c) states that "the Alaska Legislative Council shall
adopt a policy 1in accordance wth AS 39.23.540(d)", and
AS. 39. 23.540(d) states that "the comm ssion shall make avail able
to the governor and presiding officers of each house of the
| egislature a final report of its findings and recomendati ons”.
He offered that the speaker and senate president receive these
reports annually in the first ten days of the legislative
session. He continued reciting AS 39.23.540(d), which read "its
findings and recomendations as to the rate and form of
conpensation, benefits, and allowances" and declared that per
diemis an allowance. He stated that AS 24.10.130(c) refers to
"an applicable per diem allowance policy" and added that the
conditions of the policy should be established in accordance
with the statute. He suggested that the intent of the statute
is for the SOCC to neet, report its findings, and nmake
recommendations to the presiding officers of both bodies;
Legi slative Council shall adopt a policy in accordance with the
duties of the SOCC. He stated that he did not understand why
that was not occurring as such and added that it appears the
SOCC has been "punting" by not making recomendati ons regarding
the | egislature.

M5. SHEEHAN stated that she asked the former director [of DPLR]
why the SOCC does not consider legislative per diem She said
the former director indicated to her that there nmay have been
some confusion in Section 24 regarding Legislative Counci
setting the per diem policy, and an opinion was never obtained
fromthe Departnent of Law (DQL).

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK nentioned that the statute states that the
Al aska Legislative Council shall adopt a policy in accordance
with AS. 39.23.540(d), which nanes the duties of the SOCC He
expressed that a | egal opinion nmay be warrant ed.

7:04:26 PM

PAM VARNI, Executive Director, Legislative Affairs Agency (LAA),
in response to Representative Birch, stated that about 100-120
| egislative staff are reinbursed for transportation to and from
Juneau and [paid] per diem for travel tine. She said that
| egislative staff salaries have changed over the years; in the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 28, 2017



begi nning, only leadership staff were paid a salary and other
staff were paid daily. She indicated that due to the
di sparities between the two groups, many Yyears ago the
| egislature instituted salaries for all staff in order that they
m ght receive retirenment and health benefits. She nentioned
that it has been about five or six years that legislative staff
have been paid for travel to Juneau for session and said she
believed that before that salaries were set higher to conpensate
for the cost of travel. She said that per diem for |egislative
staff has been discussed; however, the |egislature has not taken
steps to establish it.

M5. VARNI pointed out that in the January 10, 2009, report, the
SOCC set the annual salary for l|egislators at $50,400. The SOCC
al so decided that session per diem travel expenses, noving
al l omances, and office expense accounts should not be considered
conpensati on. She added that the SOCC wanted Legislative
Council to set the anmount and rules governing noving expenses
and per diem allowances and nmade those recomendations in its
report; therefore, the SOCC did not nake any recomendations for
per diem

M5. VARNI explained that the state [executive branch] pays a
short-term per diem rate of $60 for neals and a |ong-term per
diem rate of $33 for neals. She relayed that the state pays
"actual s" for short-term lodging or $30 for a noncomerci al
| odgi ng option. She continued by saying that the state paid a
long-term rate of $45 for commercial |odging and $30 for non-

comerci al | odgi ng. She nmentioned that the executive branch
pays actuals [for | odgi ng] according to the bargaining
agr eenents. She said that M. Ceary infornmed the per diem

commttee that if LAA switched to actuals, it would need anot her
account ant .

M5. VARNl expressed her opinion that the federal rate of per
diem has worked well for the |egislature. She suggested that
whether it is the SOCC or DoD setting the rates, the rates wll
go up and down. She nentioned that since 1995, the federal per
diem rate has decreased 19 tines and has increased 23 tines.
She gave the follow ng exanple: The SOCC sets a rate of $213
per day and the federal rate is decreased to $175 per day. The
state is not to exceed the maxinum federal rate and therefore
must tax legislators the difference between the two rates. MVs.
Varni maintained that would create a great deal of accounting by
the state to acconplish that. She reiterated that the system of
per diemused for |egislators has worked well.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 28, 2017



7:09:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX requested that Ms. Varni state the federal
| ong-term per diem rate and asked if that rate would "work as
wel I" froman accounting vi ewpoint.

M5. VARNI responded that currently the federal long-term rate
for Juneau is $206.25 per day. She opined that rate would work
wel | and nentioned that in 2014 the federal gover nnment
considered using a flat rate. She relayed that the short-term
rate is for O to 30 days, the long-termrate is for 30 to 180
days, and for over 180 days, there is another rate.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the $206.25 rate is the long-term
rate for 30 to 180 days.

M5. VARNI responded, "That is correct.™

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if using the federal |ong-termrate
woul d work for LAA from an accounting standpoint.

M5. VARNI answered that LAA would have no problem with using
that rate. It would pay legislators the short-term rate if
traveling for a short tinme and the long-term rate for session,
whi ch woul d be 75 percent of the short-termrate.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if her wunderstanding is correct:
when legislators |leave Juneau to attend a conference, they
continue to get the short-term Juneau per diem rate; they get
rei nbursed actuals for their hotel but no neal all owance.

M5. VARNI replied, "That is correct.”
7:12: 47 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL said that he has heard that |I|egislative
staffers are paid at a higher range than sonmeone in a conparable
position in another state agency. He asked if that is true.

M5. VARNI responded that she has not studied that recently; a
salary study <could be performed to determne that. She
mentioned that staff duties are allocated differently in each
| egi sl ative office.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if, for exanple, a Range 15, Step Cin

the legislature is different from a range 15c in another state
agency, or if they are uniform across the board.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 28, 2017



M5. VARNI conceded that the two branches of governnent have
different salary schedul es. She added that enployees under the
| egislative branch did not receive a cost-of-living (COLA)
increase, which was received by enployees of the executive
br anch. She nmentioned that there are different bargaining
units, and she is unfamliar with the difference in the salary
schedul es anong them

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL said that he had heard that |I|egislative
staff receive higher conpensation due to varied work hours,
vari ed work days, and working away fromtheir hones.

M5. SHEEHAN stated that range Ilevels differ between the
executive branch and the legislative branch, which is exenpt.
She relayed that the Cdassification Section [DPLR] in DOA
determnes the salary ranges in the executive branch based on
statute; they are internally aligned so that |ike pay is awarded
for |ike work. The work of an office assistant is a range 8.
She said that an exenpt agency may decide that the work of an
office assistant is Range 10 work; it can determne that the
work warrants a higher range. She concluded that differences in
sal ary between the two branches may be due to different salary
schedul es, different assignnents of salary levels for certain
wor k, or non-conparabl e positions between the two branches.

7:17:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK stated that he recently |earned that spouses
receive per diem for days of travel to and from Juneau. He
asked if that is correct.

M5. VARNI nodded affirmatively.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked if wunder HB 181, the SOCC would
consider the different l|lifestyles of legislators or listen to
testimony from l|egislators regarding per diem He nentioned
that sone legislators can get by with very little and sone nove
their entire famlies to Juneau.

M5. SHEEHAN responded that the SOCC may consider anything it
chooses, and public testinony is taken at its neetings. She
expressed her belief there would be no restrictions against
| egi slators testifying.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 28, 2017



M5. VARNI clarified that the spouse and famly of a |egislator
receive a reduced per diem for travel to Juneau, but not during
t he session.

7:19: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL stated his understanding that the system
currently works fine in that there is a set salary that has not
been changed since 2009, but it is reviewed every year; the per
diem schedule that Legislative Council wuses is based on the
federal rate. He asked Ms. Varni if she believes the systemis
wor ki ng wel | .

M5. VARNI replied yes. She stated that the choice is to
continue to pay the maxi num federal per diem or |look at the 75
percent . She added that is what other state |egislatures do;
under the IRS regulations, legislators are eligible for the
federal per diem rate. This anobunt is to pay for |odging and
neals, and that is why Juneau |legislators are taxed. She

mentioned that there are a few states that pay [per diem to]
their legislators living within 50 mles of the capitol, and she
stated that she is certain that these legislators, too, are
bei ng taxed. She relayed that LAA previously taxed |ong-term
per diem because legislators were receiving it in their hone
towns. She added that the practice discontinued with the salary
increase. She related that she noticed on the SOCC website that
the Consunmer Price Index (CPl) for the $50,400 has increased to
$56, 000.

7:22:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL referred to the docunent citing conpensation
by state and asked for the nunber of states in which the
| egislature votes on conpensation and the nunber of states in
whi ch conpensation is set by a comm ssion.

M5. WLBUR replied that she would provide that information.

7:23.: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX nobved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 181, Version 30-LS0717\J, Gardner
3/ 28/ 17, as the working docunent. There being no objection,
Version J was before the commttee.

[HB 181 was hel d over.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 28, 2017



7:24:01 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmmittee neeting was adjourned at 7:24
p. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 28, 2017



